EVIDENCE TO
THE PARNELL
COMMISSION

BY

JEREMIAH HEGARTY
CANON GRIFFIN
DR. TANNER, M.P.

ISBN 1 903497 03 5

Aubane Historical Society
Aubane, Millstreet, Co. Cork
August 2000



Introduction

Ilustration

Jeremiah Hegarty's evidence

Canon Griffin's evidence

Dr Tanner's evidence

Mr R T Reid QC
Mr Lockwood QC
Mr Arthur O'Connor BL
SirHJames QC
Mr Atkinson QC
Mr Muarphy QC

Mr Biggar MP

CONTENTS

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 28

Page 36

WHO'’S WHO

Counsel for the Irish MPs
Counsel for the Irish MPs
Representing Irish MPs
Counsel for “The Times"
Counsel for “The Times™
Counsel for “The Times™

Representing himself



INTRODUCTION

Millstreet town and the surrounding areas played a major role in the Land War
during the latter half of the last century. For a number of years the focus of much of the Land
War activity was centred on the events surrounding the case of Jeremiah Hegarty. A full
history of this case and the period is long overdue as these events brought the area to national
prominence and created very strong feelings that reverberated for generations afterwards.
This is not such a history. It focuses on just one of the episodes of the period - local
involvement in the Parnell Commission.

This Commission was set up after a series of articles appeared in ‘The Times® in
March 1887 called ‘Parnellism and Crime’ which sought to discredit Parnell and the Land
League as basically a bunch of criminals. The articles were based on a series of letters which
later turned out to have been forged by Richard Pigott. The letters helped the Government
bring in an Irish Coercion Act. Parnell demanded an enquiry into the letters but the House of
Commons decided instead to have an enquiry into Parnell’s career and his relationship with
the Land League. It lasted from 17 September 1888 to 22 November 1889 and it was hoped
that it would finish the job begun by the articles in the ‘The Times’. :

It was the ‘greatest show in town” while it lasted and Hegarty together with the Parish
Priest of Millstreet at the time, Canon Griffin, were two of its star witnesses. It had everyone
from the highest to the lowest - the leading Irish politicians, the cream of the English Bar
including the Attorney General, Sir Richard Webster, the future Prime Minister, Asquith,
working for Sir Charles Russell, a future Lord Chief Justice and a vast array of witnesses
including Captain Boycott, Captain O’Shea, the Fenian spy Henri le Caron, the
pornographer, blackmailer and forger Pigott, as well as informers, agents, numerous police,
etc.

Pigott provided the most dramatic moment of the hearings when Russell asked him,
amongst other things, to spell *hesitancy’ which he spelt as ‘hesitency’ as it was misspelt in the
letters thereby convincing everyone that they were indeed forged by him. He hightailed it to
Europe and shot himself in Madrid a few days later. The self-righteousness of “The Times’
took a severe blow. Parnell and the League were vindicated. It is interesting that a letter,
which was probably not what it purported to be, also played a role in Hegarty's evidence.

Hegarty and Canon Griffin were both opposed to the Land League and very able in
their different ways and together were a formidable force for the League to deal with. The
conflict between the two forces brought the town and the area to a high level of political
consciousness which it retained for a long time afterwards and which developed in various
ways down the years.

The evidence and cross examination of Hegarty and Canon Griffin, which is the bulk
of this pamphlet, had to be done in such a way that it becomes clear we are only seeing the tip
of the iceberg of what was happening on the ground. The rarefied atmosphere of the Royal
Courts of Justice and the legal rules of engagement could hardly be expected to reflect the
passions and the events behind the evidence but it gives some indication of the depth of the
conflict and shows that the Land League had to have very good grounds for succeeding in this
area. It would not have been allowed to succeed by default, apathy or indifference in and
around Millstreet while both Jeremiah Hegarty and Canon Griffin were about.

Jack Lane, August 2000
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THE SPECIAL COMMISSION.

< _
ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE.

Toespay, NovEmBER 27.

(Before the Right Homourable Sim JAMES HANNEN,
MR. JUSTICE DAY, and Mr. JusTiCE A. L. Smirm,
Commissioners.) ' ks

The withess Hegarty was then examined by Mr.
ATEINSON. He said,—I reside at Millstreet, in the
county of Cork. I have lived there since 1857, and I
carry on an extensive business as a shopkeeper and
general merchant. I bave also grazing farms, and am
conneected in business with many people in the district.

Do you. know when the branch of the Land
{‘Beangua was established in Millstreet 7—On August 1,

Up to that time had you been on good terms  with
your neighbours and customers ?—Yes.

Shortly after the establishment of the Land League,
were you canvassed: by any persons to join the
League ?—~I was told generally I had to fall in with
persons who joined the League. ' :

_ Had you any communication from any particular
individual with reference to it 7~I do not know ; I do
~mnot think so. : :

Did two men call upon you ?—I do not remember that
they did with reference to joining the League. Notices
were posted up in the town with reference to traders
Jolning the League. ; ; )

What were they ?— There was a resolution ——

Mr. Lockwoon.—We have already raised objection
to this form of question. h

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—It is only with reference
to a resolution which we can prove.

Examination continued.—In December, did any mem-=
bers of the League call upon you ?—No.

Did any person call upon you with reference to any

roceedings that had taken place at’ the League ?—
ere was a party who had a conversation with me

about what took pfnca. He was a member ; I would

oot tell his name. He was an official of the League.

After that visit did you see notices posted through

5



PARNELLISM AND ORIME.

the town P—There were notices posted in the fown and
scalbtered all over the countrfy.
- What were the contents of them ?—They called upon
the people to have no dealings —

Mr. Lookwoop.—I object to that question.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—Ycur Lordships ruled that
where there were public votices posted and a man read
them he was entitled to say what they were,

The PRESIDENT.—The only departure from that was
that where you have the notices they should be put in.

Mr. ATEINSON (handing a paper to witness).—Is that
the notice to which you refer /—That is one, but there
is another much more elaborate.’ ° . 1

Is this the other one (handing another notice to wit-
ness) /—Yes. . . _

‘The following notices were then yead :—

 Take Nofice.—You are cautioned against’ having
any dealings..with Jeremiah Hegarty or his family,
‘neither to buy . nor sell them anything. Shun' them as

ou would lepers.  If you disobey this ordéry may the
iord- have mérpy on you.” _
The ATTORNEY+GENERAL.—The document is'printed,
with a,apat:&‘-'ﬁ left for the name of'the’ person 5 it is
&Z_ﬂpd up with/the name Jeremiah Hegarty in:writing,
ere is no date.; The second notice 1s as follows ;—

“ Proclamafion.—Moonlight.—Whereas, it now be-
comes, known to me that in the town of Millstreet
and the parishes of Drishane and Cullen there are tn- °
grateful renegades of Irishmen to be found capable of
occupying the farms of the evicted, and in Millstreet
there are Irishmen to be found base enough to converse
with the bigoted and boycotted, and also in Millstreet
10 Irishwomen mean and contemptible enough to con-
verse both in public and private with the bloodthirst
members of the Royal Irish Constabulary,—Now we

. L., Captain Moonlight, Governor-General and
General Governor of this district for the time being,
with the advice, consent, and ra[a.ippro'ra.l of my Pr1
Councillors, do hereby make order and say that
disgraceful and abominable work shall now cease,
This is the first and last warning to be given to thoge
concerned. I shall not hesitate now to use cold steel
in the upholding of my Government.”

The Commisstoners then adjourned for lunch.

On the Court’s resuming, the examination of the wits



YHE SPECIAL COMMISSION.
nqaa Jeremiah Hegamr was continned by Mr. Amn-»
Mter you saw -that notice in Dﬁubﬁb&g }

%wu psrnnnn come and spand

‘tht were thuir names ?—-I' P A -'Dflﬂa .
&l\&a th
e anll

?t ' Theé notices were ' Q
21nt- ;: Itfeambﬁr, til;lh!l e ¢
opposite to my shop on e My' :
;Ennutnmb yand pi:ook down thair 4
oy off violence ' & some’ méfs, -
over a cart on one ocecasion. T;’hey rﬂmnihd&

da. I remonstrated with thém, and ‘sdw the

ing to them.
Huwnglnn did this cnntinua P*hUntll the' 108 of
January, 1 3381 The men came each ﬂa.;r. Y

Were they members of the  Lea I!—-.lu‘ftril‘ ¥

know, they were.. I used to see enhﬂhg'"lha
League ruimn, and I saw resolutio n‘hldh

to be by the League, and him ch were

with their names. I saw them enter the Im-
rooms frequently.

13'\:;&;‘& %E&B men prosecuted and convicted. iit ‘March,
“—Yes.

On December 24, 1880; did an ythm happen tb you
or your relatives F—My brnthar-m-lfw’ ﬁus& '
atta cked. I was in it myself at the time. - Stoned
wm thmwn, and the windows were broken. There
was shouting, jeering, and booing.

Two dl.ya terwards did gou write & letter Yo'
Davitt M~Yes, on December '(Letter 'ﬁtodnc

‘Mr. Davitt.—I recéllect the correspon unau,
haveé not'a copy of the letter.

The PRESIDENT.—You will, of course, 1j Wﬁ ‘it
i8 being , and Jmu can n‘b;aot to :ny po which;
you do not remember ‘

Hrad.".l‘]t&.ﬁhﬂnt then r;a.d th: letter : ;

¢ Bir,—Thou o not agree 'in your
thhunrm ﬁm éntire pro gnmalq%_ B

of#ﬁy% :g::mambﬁr..
E‘; & yinrs
regards ¢oercion, and L ve ' in ﬂiﬂ F“‘

of nu.r unnetaam )
mfeii“ﬁ Y uq t that reé‘i?
o! thé uses  for vd:uch inath

Lwa as been prostituted in this Howh, B

7



PARNELLISM AXD CRIME.

ually so in many other districts—viz., to gratily
een and private malice, and to annoy and ruin many
individuals against whom no charge could be adduced.
For instance, a meeting of the Lund League was hel
here on Tuesday last at which a resolution was i
to boycott me. This was, I believe, opposed by the
chairman, &c., and when he failed in his oggmitinn he
insisted upon reasons being assigned for such an extra-
ordinary act. This they also declined to do, and pro-
ceeded during Tuesday night posting notices_ calling
upon the people to bhave no dealings with me or my
family in very offensive and unbecoming language, in
addition to which a sentry of members of the League
were posted opposite my business premises to intinicﬁ.“tu
people from entering wmy house. They also have
sttempted personal violence to myaself, and on several
Mulf:;!ll d'::-mg the past three niglits have broken into
my brother-in-law’s house in the public street at Mill-
_ street (and for which informations have been lodged
against them), for no réason except that they have
been active in my hour of trial on my behalf.
- "I have no doubt that there are many active
usaful, and honest members in the Millstreet Lu&
: m On the *other hand, it contains a sufficient
of membeérs who, if looked &t from sny.point
- of view, are certain to bring disgrace upon the
I;m‘- organiztions t hout’ this county. Tt is
ess for me to particularige their conduct hers,. but
1 say without fear of contradiction that if m“;
trie inlnh.nﬂistﬁl:mnﬂ by the same reign of -
as Millstreet that Habeas Corpus Act is suspended in
its most hideous form. I know numbers of pengh who -
are coerced into this business of the League by open
and deflant thréats of violence, &e. Burely lmi con-
duct as this is likely to weaken, instead of being
element of ntrunf-th to the interests of the poor tenant- "
farmers. of Ireland, whose waante so. sadl r_«gulira
amelioration. Buch cruel acts on individ as have .
‘been n?-wtlned on me are sure to evoke the indigna-
tion ' of every honest man in the community, whether
in the Land League or out of it, and to produce the
fruits they so merit. 3
"¢ I have carried on an extensive trade in this town
, the past 25 years, and have not during that
ime injured & man in my businéss dealings. If I have
somewhat succeeded better than many of my nﬁl:L

8



THE SPECIAL COMMISSION.

bouring traders, it is well known tbat it is by nstant
toll,'ahtiring weal, and peérsever . _that'r'y
lun 80 mnueeded and I tedtlmly muﬂ ot
in ‘season and out of season, during thit Vi
lost an opportunity of advocating the inter -
farming community and an amendmeht- ‘of ¥
: " Even.on selfish or personal grounds'it souly
 be oﬂmrmua, ag probably I am among the bigh
rented tenants in the community, my valuation belig
ln‘ﬂ{ﬂ rent £596, and holding chiefly as a yearly tetdly
penny 1 ever made has been apunt in procutit
'ﬂu mant for ttII; Ill.:mt:mtn ; hn:tinn: in
During ast ten B ve given
ploym-nt annually !—.-1(%0 I have Eea m&.-
vouring oduu.ta and maintain fairly a large
family, and beoause a number of imlvanﬁ row
here bave been epabled,under the auspices of the I
Lequ#, stop me in following my usual

to be ruined and prevented from supporting '.i

H’ » though theére be nl: chn.r ldmoasp:pluﬁm
: 'hrin.l mﬂaﬂng eprivation of m
l:benty ﬁf the teaching of th

hére, in the name of freedom, patrio %
B

all h is dear and sacred to Iriahmen at ho
abroand I call upon the Government to exercise its
rogative, snd crush out once and for ever
tyranny. ¢ I am, Bir, yours truly,
% JerEmIAR HreArTy, P.L.G.
“6¢ To M. Davitt, E-q Offices, Irish National
Land Le-guu, : b’ppar ackville-street,
Did yon et any reply to that letter PN
re atter f=—=NO.
Up byog“ tima a: you wrote that lettetr. m
you able to ure provisions in the town P—Ypg
After the letter did any change take place
diately. We had d:ﬁnulty in getting provisicds,.
were sometimes brought to us secret
Had given a ca.nla for such treatmet
your ¥ tu juinn{ha League P—Nong
Had you two men in your umpl
Kelleher and Buckley P—Yes. 'I'I:wjr i
threatering rotices on the 14th NSO
1881. I tooi: the motices and em 0 8
poliee. i :
Mr. Armm.-—'l‘ho_ original nuﬂ‘oel l:.l-ﬂ Jost,
my Lord. (To witness,) you remembes Bin-

ko 9




PARNELLISM AND CRIME,

tents ~I do. They said that the men shoula ieave
my employment, and that if they did not do so of their
own accord they would be coerced into leaving in a

ve untﬁleaaa.nt manner. J

&d e men leave ?—Kelleher left at once.

Do you remember the trial in March,1881, of the two
men whom you describe’ as acting as sentries at your
door P~Yes. 'When I was retarning from the at
Cork I was insulted by a large crowd of people.
 -How.large was the crowd ?—The witness was und
‘gtood to estimate the number at 700. ;

What did they do ?—On my way from the ' Millstreet
.station to iy home a very large crowd of ‘people
hooted at me  and’jostled me, following mé' through -
g:e streeta.b %l“ﬂlﬂ(ll?]% night fu— very large tgaowd, num-
rin obably 1,000 people, congregated near m
busingupr' 3 . and began wrecking the house vrl’bz

stonés. It was found necessary to disperse the mob
:l;a police. The!attack lasted, I should say, about halfe

Aftér the mpb had been dispersed, was anything démne
to the thatch of your brother-in-law’s house P—A “large
number of people . congregated round the house snd set
fire  to the roof. My brother-in<law and his'family
dwerg inside at:the time. My brother-in-law: is now

ead. |

Had you a farm at Kippagh ?—Yes, and a dairy con-
nected with it. I employed a caretaker named Sweeney
there. On Aprit 18, 1881, I received a report‘ from
Sweeney and went to the farm. I found the door and
. windows broken ; a lot of ware had .been destroyed ;

the dairy utensils had been knocked about and the milk
and orgam spilt. A lot of meal had been destroyed. .

At this time, had you a labourer in your empﬁhjmant .

called James ‘.l.‘wo],ug ?—Yes, he wqrﬁed on the same .

Was there also a man named Daniel Sullivan in your

employment ?—No. : _ :
ome short time after this riot, do you remember

being met on the road to chapel by two gentlemen ?—
Yea, outside the chapel. b

Who were these men P—Jeremiah O’Connell and
John | Rearden. ' They were the secretaries of the
League. I do not know exactly the date of the ocour-
rence, pul it was shortly after March 25, ‘They were

10



THE SPEOTAL OOMMISSTON.

engsged in ¢onversation, and tppeared to be giving
ins ucmons I did nob hear what, the Ay Werg saying.
the chap%l you noties, gny-
M ?— he side where m mther-m-ln.w sab wes
esetted. The people had left it. There weére s great
Wy seats on thaf side.
ere they all enipty ?——Excéptmg ten or 15 pe mla
- ‘the members of the congregation were on the . other

.nde F the cha
cf 9 zknge a ﬁruiesman in Millstraet named

OEMahohay was a friend and tepant of
mine
& Was he.:. member of the Laa.gue g | am aWALS, thet
& W48 no

he any mmcuuy in  obtaining provisions P— -

t
'he gone to America P—Yes. He left, I thmlc. '
Waa a butoher named ‘Hennessy a member 0
L e /—Yes ; a very active member m
Eﬁ?}eme roopun were immediately be Y, m:

Was he 3n official of the La o P=T ca.nnot
b ﬁgterproduc )m esay’sha.pd Hmpz?
—_ es

Thel arned conmsel then reuﬂ the letber, 1 which w
upe 15, .1881. It contained a' r ;o
oney 1‘-0 send to Cork for his mea.t, & il‘iht

wa.s com to st
“§; h 01: :u?:: mﬁe babit of ml.ﬁns
wx meat P—Yes.
180 fP—Yes. He ceased to do 86 ot Chrlie
ma.s, ‘
you know a Mr. Kellehd', ' lo,h_plh! af Rantaik?
~—Yes.

‘Are you a mn.glstrn.te P—Yes.

antiee Klsudn g A Ty K sty

on:-,es

Have :yod M ltr nnmrammq thos¢ persotis?

ably,
Ha Been wito him W s Nontly -
alwi.u um’ ﬂ‘: Land League:

T el b b Erm e

a8 sentries bgrra your house who defended them P—

11




PARNELLISM AND CRIME.

 This solicitor, Mr. Kelleher. I am satisfied that it
~ was he.
Did you see the secretary of the League interesting
himself in the defence of these men ?—Yes.
Did you hear him challenging the jury —Oh ; I do
not know. :
Do you remember driving home from your farm at
Clenhannon in April, 1885 ?/—Yes.
Had the boycotting continued up to 1885 ?—Yes.
In the interval had you received any threateming
letters ?—I have only received one. That was in 1885.
- Did you see any threatening noticés posted in the
' town in addition to those you have already mentioned ?
—There were notices posted up from time to time, but
without seeing them 1 could not recall the contents
with certainty. ; o0
_ Take this bundle in your hand. Did you see any of
these ?~—Yes ; I have seen them ; but I cannot say
my.gu &;ﬁ t%py were posted up:- T. ey were shown to
: 1Ce. : ; Brla )
m‘lhz Aﬂgnnﬂﬂ-ﬁmn (to Mr. Reid).—Do you
object to their bemf read now ? I am going to call
constables to prove them all. e SR il B
Mr. REIp.—If my learned friend undertakes ‘to  call
the constables, I do not object. Unless they are to be
called I really cannot consent. e
% . ATKINSON.—The difficulty ig this.. The. notices
will have to be proved by a great many policemen. -
Opne policeman can y depose ‘as to one or two of
The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—If we are {0 be put to the
strict proof of every ome of these notices we shall
have to call 20 or more policemen.
The PRESIDENT.—I am quite sure it can be arranged.
The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—We have the officer here
in whose custody the notices have been for several
years.

~ Mr. REip.—We must have an opportunity of looking
+ at these doocuments, and then, when the officer is
called, we will decide whether we can admit them.

Examination continued.—Do you remember returning
home from Clenhannon farm in April, 1885 ? —Yes.

'~ Were you shot at #~Yes, bat I was not hit. . .
Did the smith in Millstreet continue to shoe your
borses up to 1885 ?—Yes. He then refused to shoe

12



THE SPECIAL COMMISSION.

them. He had worked for me for more. than 20
years.

Aftor you had been shot at, did your inability to
provisions continue up  to 1857 P—That was
w?l‘l:t b“lgjati;hﬂa ; April, 1885, the boyecotting
‘ en a nng m pril, the y
still continued ?—Oh,

Did it continue up to Apnl 1887 ?—Yea. '

In that month do you - remember driving from the
Millstreet Railway Station with your son and &
manservant ?—Yes. i

Were you fired at again ?—Yes.

Did the first shot mmu yon; and were 3011 struck
Eh;d second ?/—Yes, I was hit on the shoulder

‘Are you still boycotted ?——Pa.rtmlly but I d‘o uot
care much now.

Before the establishmernt of the League was Hill-
street a peaceable district P—As peaceable a districh
as there was in Ireland. 'There were only one
lea:nt -and four policemen there. After the esta-
blishment of the ue the foroe was increased to 70
men under a district ins mdpeo There are at presen$
two police barracks hree police huts.

- In the interval between the suppression of the Land
Iael-gue and the establishment of the National
was there any cessation of the boycotting P—I
1! that were quieter.

id..4his boycotting affect your trade mush f-—”
took away the whole trade. In eight yem I musk
have lost 216 ,000.
- '‘Before .the .eatablishment of the Land you
%naw something about the crime -in the Ro]

Did ouavarheu- o!nmhiunhm Yﬂﬁ"

. inﬁ
kn hat moonlighting is P—¥
b evg: k:ow o?:ha:gmiidon &.@ offenéa t'-
'I'h ming I;:Iore the e-uhluhmaﬁ‘ of the: E;unt
" Fe WAS noi one moenlighter in distwicd.
" It q: not 8o now, I helieve ?—I am. nm; tQ w it

is n
Crau-enmihed by Mr. R:m -] nnt'fo
er view you wéte an exc ia

cember, 1880 P—I was tbe most popular man
county of Cork. (Laughter.)

13



PARNELLISM AND ORIME.

And your only offence was that you would not join
the Land League ?—That is the only offence that I am
aware I committed. P =

And from being the most popular man in the district

u have been boycotted ever since 1880 and shot ab

wice because you would mnot join the League ?—Yes,
that is the view which I take myself.

Have you ever had anything to do with evietions P—
I have. Up to 1880 I had not. . After 1880 I became
connected with the, management of some properties in
the neighbourhood. \

Did you not assist in carrying out the eviction of a
. man named Lyons P—Yes ; 'kg:ll'ﬂ was a tenant that
inﬁa evicted, and I was present on behalf of the land-

ord. : .
What was the date of. the eviction P—It was in
February, 1886, I should say, speaking from meémniory.

Were you connected with the eviction of Reardon ?
—Yes ; that was, I think, in January, 1887, It might
.~ have been in 1886. I cannot be sufe about the date.
~ Were you at the eviction of a man named Dennehy ?
w-No, ; im -was no eviction there, properly speaking,
and I was not connected with the affair.
 You had nothing to do with it P—No..

Were l;ypu geénerally considered to have taken in
that P—I cannot account for all thab is considered. All
that I can say is that I took no in it. 3

H%. Justice A L. BMiTe.—When was that evice
tion P—I should u{nthnt the nhnnga in the ownership
of the farm took place in May, 1880. .

Who was the landlord ?—Dr. Thompson,
hu?ﬁa you his bailif ?~No ; I am not anybody’s

Were you his agent ?~No ; I am his agent now.

Were you in any way connected with him at that
time P—No. '

. Am I to understand, then, that you were not present
et and were not in auy way concerned in Dennehy’a
eviction P—No, I was not. it

You were in no way conhected, directly or in-
directly, with this cha of occupation in the farm?
—I was in this way only—that I acted at the request
of the tenant as mediator between him and the land-
."[itﬁ% and I used the little influence I possessed in

Wave

14



THE SPEOTAL COMMISSION.

" What dlidyou do? Did you intercede for him with
~ the landlord ?—I did.

What else did you do P—I got the money from lim
landlord and gave it to the tenant,

Did you uka the land ?—No.

You did not become the occupier P—No.

Did sny relation of yours take the land P—Nope:
whatever.

Let me come to the eviction of Dennis O"Leaty.

n was tlnt?——[ should say, so far as I can re-
member, in February, 18886,
lc:& T will pass fmm that. Was John R. Bullivan
?—He was not.

Wu there. a clmm of occupation in his farm P—I
do not know that re was. The tenant went to
Australia, and left directions with the rector of the
Inmh e left possession of the -place to the land-

In the mmtim Bullivan stepped into the
place and took possession of it and cot the meadow,
mﬁhalmltnhelmt out of it,

That is your own version of the story P—That is the
trae version of it, (Laughter.)

Oh ! you must not assume that we are ing to-

® verything 1. (Laught .
nﬂgﬂfmnm i t:gom { wf w

nmh:t it is true, i s o
-—(m;ﬂ! 0 DOV BB W
observation I make should be received with luughﬁlt

by a clague on the other :ida
The PRESIDENT.—I do not like to interfere
ht I strongly ob nt to h%htar. Do let us c
the case as quiet
Mr. REtp.—I am mi question in a I
am eatitled to pu :f,n o' not think :%
be mtinun ly interrupted with laughter. 1Itis
my mind. (To witness.) Now let us
to huinm. Patrick Ford—do you kmow W

he was evicted pP—There was such a case,
When was it P—If I nmamhir. it was M 1886.

ﬂ-dﬁl ow metu uitfp ynn y 3
.—Patrick Ford was evicted by th- h-!h-!.
bad & mortgage on the farm to a very

e nian to y the rent over to the ﬂ-hﬂ'
lord or any mt&rutp;n the :f::trtﬂs&- and from being a

15



PARNELLISM AND ORIMHE.

debt of £67 it became one of £247. Having this mort-
gago, I offered Ford to let him off half the mouey if

e would give me possession. But »o, he would not.
He stopped there. At last he gave up possession

aceably. I put him back into the farm, but at last
fewu obliged to evict him.

When dirf you first act as sub-agent or bailiff or in
any way for landlords P—I became agent to & very
small property in April, 1880.

That was the first P—Yes.

Will you tell me the name of the landlord P—~Mr.

Eiﬁ}:tun. :

t was the next pm;ﬂ::erty you became bailiff for?
=] did not become bailiff for any property. I do not
wish to answer insulting questions.

Mr. Rem.—I was not aware that the term
%% bailiff ” was an offensive term in Ireland. It is
not so in England. I did not mean to be offensive.

Witness.-—It is taken the other way in my country.
o Vel, whiln dMl you sexd bosome: aguah o mb-seerh

a pro ’ tow
end c?f l%aﬂ? :
th?id yli:g s_i_rfve, or take I:nnr!tlli.;i?f serving oﬁr?dirNeut
serving; of processes a © year —No.

Or of writs of any kind 7—No.

Now, listen to this. Have you been charged with
wr suspected of being a la.ndﬁu ber in any sense ? Do
not be offended with me.—No, the term could not be
applied to me. There is no man the term could be
applied to with less truth. -

you become possessed of a farm that had been
wecupied by a man named John Flynn ?—I became
possessed of my father-in-law’s farm under his will.

Is he your father-in-law ?—He was. (Laughter.)

Did he leave you this farm ?—Yes, by his will.

And you entered into it in that capacity P—¥es § it
is only 14 aores of land.

Wariﬂyun his executor P—No. It is a long time aga
now—18 or 19 years.

Did you come into possession.of a piece of land
ocoupied by a man named Howlett —No.

Do you know anything about this land P—The sum
total of that piece of land was only about 20 perches.
It was a small piece of land at the back of my
premises. He had been permitted on my own applioas«

]l‘l

-
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tion to sell the interest in the temancy of & farm ha
held, for which he got the sum of £240." For dolug
that be gave it to me. He said it was no good to him,
and he had never done anything with it.

Will you allow me to put to you what I undeﬂ-%ptl
you to say—you will correct me if I am wrong. ' Yoa,
said that Howlett had been in the occupation o!'ﬁ%
land, and on some change or settlement or other
told you you might take this piece of land. Yonr'
statement ig that you took it with his consent ? '
The PresrpENT.—I think I wunderstood him to say
that this was only a little bit of ground at the bao
of his business premises. Does land-grabbing exteéend
bo that ? (Laughter.) ,
Mr. REID.—When was this incident P—It was ,in
1878 or 1879. y
Now Cornelins Bagl.nf——.wu there any question
about some lanc of his P—Never.
Was it Rearden —Never. ,
Was it John Rearden or Regan P—No, nor any name
n]:lpmmhin%oit. (To the Court.) I will ask you to

farmit me o explain. As rega the three evictions

presumie Mr, Reid referred to _
What were the names—I will ask P—One was.

Lyons, another Riordan, and the O’Leary. ,

every one of these cases there was about four gm ¢
rent due. In the case of Riordan, he owed £34 .@lﬁ
I offered to take from him half a year’s rent—£40
and to wipe out all the arrears but £100. That w,
it; and I scarcely think it is fair to attpck
upon it.

Mr. REID.—Nobody has been attacking you.

Witness.—I made the same offer in the otheg :
cases. I would not be connected with any eviopl
inless I had previously offered a very fair sattlec

I am asking you about your troubles of the lagt
years. ¥You say you were attacked because Jf
mot joined the League. I want to ask you Wi
these evictions—in fact, all evictions in Irelapg
not been for a good many years & cause Of gruab Gis-
satisfaction and discontent 7—There were ng BVADTION
Wwhatever on the small property that I'was comusowm
Wwith until these troubles commenced. = '

Is it not the fact that these and all evi o
been and are the mm:n ofﬁ?ha trouble m:ﬂh

17
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in some distriets in Ireland P—I am very sorry to say
that it i3 and has been ro. o~ il ¥

When did the Land League first start in your district?
=0On August 1, 1880.

I believe jruu; were an opponent of the Land Lea
from the start P—Yes ; I stated distinctly to
Davitt that I was not & member of that body and did
not intend to be.

You distinguished yourself by yuur opposition to the
League — “Ful I saw very distinctly from the begin-
Emg what would be the result of the teaching of the

and
Is it n‘futha case that yoa hin distinguished your-
lelf from the commencement Eour hnatlht-j' to the

e ?—Yes ; I oﬁ'aredthun stility as well as I
Eunftar t;hoir attack upon me.

Hn.vu ou nob constantly expressed your opinion
about thg League in strong {mm ?—I have always done

80, 4
Is it not a fact that the -mhnunl p?rﬁ
f the po n of the district in which jol ].i.m
rently
e are quiba n.wu-e that you have ll*llrl
gtrong opinion, and you- have t now ; but im

it not the case that the nga amhncul .8 li'al-!i pro-
portion o! thé population P—
And you belong to the Inndlordu Dofanm Associa-
tion ?—Nu 1 3 I:nall:u:qli to the Cork Defence Union.
That is a ch  is in the habit of
down emergen J man into the district —They have a.
hge number of men in their employment.
entlemen called emergency men P—Thay call them
®ll manner of names.
The PresipENT.—When did you become con-
:imctad h:itfll this }hfma Uhnion ?_tl}:t 1886. If
may owed, would explain there is a
t very large number of people connected with the associa-
ion,
Mr. REID.—You tell me a great nmumber of
X do not ask you, you know. I asked you whathu 1t
was not the case that they are an association that
bring down peo la called emergency men to the district?
-—Egy tgmp oy men locally to assist hgg;tted maghn
are rather an unpopular among those
who are g.nd Lm::eru ?—As a matter of course any

18
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one who opposes the Land Leagne must be unpgpular
with the members of it. :
They cultivate evicted farms, do they mnot P—To a
sertain extent, if a farm is evicted and the person who
takes it is mnotbad. They give their assistance to
-any boycotted person. * _
You have been active in that interest for the last
four or five years ?—I am one of the executive of the
Defence Union, _
And, therefore,you actively take part in its work ?—
ﬁi’;ﬁ I.ati*g:ly I am sorry to say, bevause my time does
rmit.
: Becretary.—Will youn kindly proceed a little
_:iluwar as the shorthand writer can hardly take it

own

Mr. ReEmp.—Certainly. (To witness.) Kindly give

our answers a little slower. Before you joined this
Defence Union had you not been very busy in the same
interest for a good long time ?7—I do not quite follow
your question. : ' '

Had you not busied yourself very comsidera in
endeavouring to get evicted farms ocoupied, in
assisting boycotted persons and dealing with boy-
cotted persons very largely P—I have been very active
all nlonﬁn treing to assist people who were lnﬁaﬂ
ihrnuﬂl yyeotting, and I have exerted myself as
I could, and as in duty bound to do, to get evicted
farms protected. : : :

I am not discussing the priety or impropriety in
the least. I am oﬂf ukinp;oyun for the fact. .g"
gince 1880, ever since this Land League began, is it
not true that you have exerted yours in favour. of
persons who were boycotted, and favour of ‘eme
deavouring to get boycotted farms taken up 2—1I havé
assisted boycotted people from the unnugenum
u‘f I have endeavoured, of course, to get the

en up.

. Now,
te

ou have said that you lost £16,000. Will you
11 me how you make that out ? In eight years. you
Pog by have” lost £16,000 ; that is at the fate of
£2,000 & year. You were making a profit of crriegg
& year before 1880 ?—I should say so. I have &

at that by taking the basis of the profits of my busi
ness for the years previous to those in which I was
boycotted.

[
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What was your bmnau ?—1 was in every descri
tiom of business. farmed very largely, and I still
nontmua farmin Fur a long time l':mva farmed
under very great ﬁlsndvmta es. I have baen a general
Rrocer, have had a spirit and wine store, and & hmhur

lt'nra
ou state you put down your profit before 1 80
ab £3. 00 a year P—I should say so. My business:
vm'i:nuch e:tandad for two or three years pravinuu
The business since was a losing concern.
. Davitt.—I will ask Eou a few questions.
Hr REID.—May I just ask you t-hu,wh.lch I omitted ?
Do you know Archdeacon Bland P~By ra?u
" In October, 1880, did he evict some amilies near
Millstreet who were in very poor lodgmgu '‘?=-~Person-
all lind do not know ; but I heard of it
.&ruhdan.uun ‘Bland omitted to give due notice
' ncl by law to the guardians of th& nﬂatmn ?—I do
khu# that myself. It was a long time li!o
Were yon & member of the Millstreet ard of
@uoardians at that time ?—I was. .
Do ?‘othrtam ﬂﬁl bnﬂﬂ propo sm} :’hafrra to rabvged
aing c n Bland for a pena or nu
:Et.iua ?—1 have some rauullautmnpgﬂnt it 8 gi etE
- And do yon. recollect that . you npma?m
veeding against Archdeacon ' Bland
Wﬂl -you Eﬁnw me to explain though? 'I',ha
‘matler, so far as I recollect; was brought befnre the
Board at the time of an eviction carried out by Arch-
deacon Bland, with whose property I had no oom
nexion whatever. I was in favour of proceeding
against Archdeacon Bland, and subsequently the gentle- .
man who was acting as his lnhmtnr came before the
Board and stated the terms that the tenants were
ered. I asked him whether he would still hold to
e same statement, which was a liberal one at
the time, and which I thought the Archdeacon was not
prepared to continue at the time, and seeing that he
wu 1 did not feel it my duty to be a party to prosecuts

ila had given this notice ?—-Ha hm:'l It was proposed
to pmaacuta him for a penalty, and I ultimately

op
%ou not that an extremely uni}opulnr thing at that
?—No. It was a very popular thing at the time to
ta.ka the part of the evicted tenant, whlch 1 had done.
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Hlﬂ ou not incur great unpopularit p:é l.mnkglg'
Ep 4 Elllm Emuaed.{nga a.gampl'; uhgamn
0 in
iynliﬁ; LRE;II:E E’GOHHGR.—HQF many men did m
¥m uy o u
75 you a man named Killy in your amploylulntf
»1 have not.
unihan ?P—No ; but I had.
ou have always had a misgiving with regard td' ﬁﬁq
character of the National League from the commence=
ment P—] have.
You always anticipated that its proseedings would
ead to misconduct ?—I always thought it would lead
£0 a deal of mischief.
And if disturbances of any kind followed the meeb:
ingn nf t-ha Ng;.unal League your anbicipations werg
eti ve not been at the National Lugw
ma ng l

meetings of the National Lﬂu-

I‘u nwo-:f maunndudt in the neighbourhood what

kuf for was realized P—Just go..

Wu there a maal:il? in Millstreet on Augmi Iy
| 1336, un a Sunday P—I do not remember.

alp you to rémember. Do you redolléct

]:ha Windows of the Protestant ch were broken

- that date P~—Yes.

- List.m to this i—*¢ John Killy, jun:, and cnmliunr
uniha.n both of Millstreet, were od for that
Erugld 1lEili"iull;'jr and mrﬂlmuualr g Pk m

and injure seve es o0

'll'imimrn of the Protestant ﬂhl:l.l.'!:ll]n Lidcahane,

Etraat on Bunday, August 15, 18886. g Were those’ |

ed $—I never heard thnt tha were.

By Mr. Davitt.—Did I ever ask yuu to jolo My
League P—You never did ask me.

Did I ever coerce you 7—No.

With reference to this very able ‘Iuibﬂ' ;
which you say you sent on December 36 1&30
sppeat in the Daily Telajraph befote " wi
me '—No

Are you sursé of that P~I am. Imﬁﬂhﬁd.ﬂqﬂf
News afterwards. It was in the Daily News oh Dé
ber 28, and it was also sent to the Cork Hetald and h

k Ecaminer.
Was that written to me in consequence of atything X

M
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had said P—I wrote the letter to you because I believed
that you could use your great influence against such
‘truelty t0 a man who had done nnlihu:ihwrongi -1
wanted to put before you the uses to which the League
had been prostituted in my district and, in my opinion,
other districts. . '
- Did you read anything I had written or spoken ab
that time about people being coerced into joining
‘League P—I do not know, but I must have entertained
‘s uwondg opinion” of you, or I would not have written
‘HHI.lﬂ to you. okt oF i 0
ve you recollection of anything being written
mia:_ reu on l;-;ﬁt pft;he'huacu?fi?‘ra of the
Land' League against an g 10 the shape of coercion
or intimﬂll.tion with regard %o g':]eoia ¢ joining the
League I do not remember ; but I must have had
" ‘somie such idea in my head when I wrote that letter
to : :

1 remember having received a letter and -1 thought
T bad wi?tqan a re%ily; are you certain you gu?nn

ngl,v P—Certsain, |

id you hear of the local branch of the Leagne
reprimanded by me for its conduct towards you ?

—Never ; htlllt.‘dyour explanation now is very satisfao-

tory. If I received a reply my previous experi-

ence of you would have made me expect that it would

be in that direction. - : val

. Now, in that same letter you said that the Mill-

straet me. _had been used to gratify spleen and

private malios —Yes. e

. _Did you never come to the executive for protec-

tion P~My case ought to have been put before the

oouncil ; it was sent up ¢o Dublin. :

o I understand you to say that you are under the
pression that your case was discussed in Dublin by
e League, and that they asquiesced in boycotting P—
No, I do not exactly say that, but I thought you
puﬁ feel it your duty to lay it before the executive
in Dublin and put a stop to the boycotting.

I think the chairman of the local branch opposed
some resolutions directed against you ; so the local
- branch would not be unanimous in going against you ?
—Na ; I believe the chairman did as you say.

. Now you. say you have experienced a great deal of
trouble in gattinﬂpmviaium ?—Yes, in Millstreet ;
I had no trouble elsewhere.
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Are you not a provision dealer yourself P—Yes, my
ess was carried on for the purpose of ‘providing
myself and sustaining people who were suffering from
boycotting. A deputation* from the League went to
‘wome wholesale provision merchants and asked them
not tgl;upply me, and some had to send me goods
Becretly. e ' !
That is not an answer to my question. You said yba
had a great deal of trouble in getting provisions ; do
‘you mean meat and such things?—I killed my own
sheep and got mutton. :
You deal in groceries P—Ves. )

. Now, I do not mean it in any way to be disparaging
- to you, but I suppose even wholesale dealers who sup-

plied meal and flour and other articles 'found them-

selves interfered with. I suppose there are in Mill-
‘Btrect a 1 number of small shopkeepers P—Yes.

They would be jealous of your large estdblishment

and the general character of your merchandise P—
Very naturally they would, but I was always very
po with the whole nei{ghbuurhmd.

; t is the population of Millstreet ?—About 1,300
or 1,400. In 1880 it had four police and one ser-
geant ; now if has 70 men. There are two barracks
.:11} thpctt:uwn, and the police are sonttered over the

L8trict. b

Do you think this large increase in the polick force
may have something to do with the boycotting and
annoyance to which yon were subjected P—I do nof
think directly ; indirectly it may have done. -
- Was the district charged with the support of these
extra police ?—No. :

you certain P—I am. . s

_ Now, with regard ‘to this £16,000, what dges thaj

represent P—General trade. !
nuludm bad debts ?—~Some, since the astablishment
of the L Leagus. : PR s

Were there no bad debts before this wicked:
Lsague came along ?—I cénsider that mdhui
there was peace and plenty until ;the League
‘came, - DRt L I

Wasy there no povertyP— one was fairly content
and able to meet demands, and willing to pay rent. -

There was no disturbance with regard to the land ?—

0.
‘How old are you ?—56.
N



PARNELLIEM AND ORIMN.

Then rou mmambnr the years befare tha faming P
Wall, I was only a bo :

our father would mmimhar them ?—Oh, yes.

id you never hear from him about the troublao—-
murders and outrages—in consequence of the large
nle:rmcaa ?—Iti'y father died when I was only a few

rs old
Jﬁ‘i‘hm u{nu can gnra me no mfurmu.hun about it —No,

ou give evidence before

Bmhumugh mmisumn —Yes.

What was the nature of thnt evidence with regard to
& Land Act ?—In favour of it.

1f .everything was as favourable.as you say, why was
2 Land Act required 7—People are always anxious to
Jbe e secure in their farms.

Did you occupy s farm of a man ¢alled Toomey P—

Yes.
In what way did you get it P—From the Court of

Dldefga widow consult you with ragud to this farm
before you took it ?~No, she was dead at the time.

What hmma of the children P—There. were only -
two ; are still in the dmtnut

%’uu 1&:&3 t';l%e lmﬂt}i:rﬂs

ou n rphans any com h
ﬂ al'a?g ha;i ngnila the slightest nutmn of it. That wu
’ h'i-nk

‘Do you think your. action was calculated tu make

ym: pupuhr in the community ?—Yes. I was one¢ beaides
‘:E:thcnt Nationalists in the place who offered
to the Court of Chsnwry They would

nnt hnva iven compensation.

You ffnmate your profite at EE 000 a year u
1879. Upon what sum did you pay income-tax E—-I
vannot tell you, There are a great many reductions
allowed in ruapeut of income-tax.

Dldyou ever pay muuma-m on £1,000 ?—I would have

papers if I had known I should be asked
thana quanﬁuna.
you pay income-tax on £1, 000 up to 1879 P—
E ;tug:s was understood to raply that he did not
@
- You made a return in 1879 ?—I think the return was
made before that. .

The retnrn you made was not what you now sa

your income was P—Bufm:a 1879 it was 1&3& than £1,00
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: I returned as my income to the Gnmi :
: years I made extenmsive alterations in my b

1 {on swear that your return reached £500 a

—I cannot tell you. I cannot recall every-
g that ocourred nine gearu ago.

. Well,we will leave the Judges to form their own con-
lusions as to the value of your evidence with ta?ee‘b
to your income-tax. You were employed once by John
M’Carthy, were you not ?—Yes, 30 or 32 ago.

: 811!1 you ever serve him with a writ ?—No. o
~Tell me ; have you ever received secret service
mopey from the Government ?—I have no hauitl:i_nn in
Qn;waringinthu question, although I know it is only put
with the intention of insulting me. I neverreceived a
penny from the Government. I am under no ubm
ﬂuth re to money, to any oné in the Unit

om. would scorn to accept it. 5
.~ Have you ever been present at an eviction P—I
have ; bub not at many. deteiled the circumstances
Yo Mr. Reid a short time ago. - %
- You have told us you were in the spirit trade P—I.
wes, I am not now, The licence is in my son’s name.
EH h'a:lh“ on a pleasure tour to New Zealand and

s s, .
- Do you get the profit I do not. It goes to his
sccount. I have not been connected with the business
for three years. I am out of it. :

Is it customary in county Cork to make the sub-
!-tgqnh of landlords magistrates 7—I am not awarée that
it is. Bl s
Were you made a magistrate because you were ihe
pet of the landlords ?—No, I have " property of my

wn.

_Re-examined by Bir H. JAMES.—Do yon own con«
siderable property P—I farm about 1,200 acres.
. Are you ufgete agent for certain properties as well
a8 sub-agent 7—I am, R - o
. When did you first become subject to ill-treatment
at the hands of Land Leaguers P—Towards the end of
D ofane-fhen did hei plaint as to

ore then did you ever hear any com .

any action of ynurg as agent for Mr, Bingleton 7—I did
not hear a word of complaint.

Had you ever heard any complaint in respect of your
management of his property P—No.
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You were asked by Mr. Biggar as to some land
which you took in 1876 P—Yes ; in that year a sho
keeper in Millstreet became bankrupt, and the land,
which consisted of accommodation fields, was sold, the
E,'mef Chancery interfering, and I was declared the

ant,

A question was put to you about two children in
connexion with a holding which you obtained. Was
there any reason why you should give these children
n.ngeoampenutiqn P—None whatever. ,

fore 1880 did you ever hear any complaints as to
_ your conduct with respect to this holding ?~No, they
never complained of my conduct.

Now as to your popularity. In 1879 yon lost a
daughter, I believe. as the funeral attended by
2,00 Tnunu P—It was the largest funeral ever seen
in Cork. It was a mile and a quarter long.

That may be taken to be some proof the estima-
tion in which fun were held 7—Yes. -

Did the local branch of the League ever communi-
E.h t;: ou that Mr. Davitt had remonstrated with

em ?P—No.

If he did remonstrate with them, did it have any
aﬂnu:d ?—Nu. ‘No beneficial effect as far as I was con-
cerned. e . !

The letter which you wrote to Mr. Davitt was pub-
lished on December 28, 1880. Did the: treatment to
which you were subjected increase in severity after
that or not P—I% increased in severity.

The business, is it your som’s or your own /—The
witness was understood to say that it was his son’s.

Now as to income-tax. Yon made all the regular
e ?_iY“'?poad 6 be the avesge of dlres

e roturn is suppos 0 e a 0
* takings P—Yeas. ;

It was in 1879 that your business profits reached the
sum which you have mentioned P—Yes, there had been
a very large increase up to 1880. It reached the mazi-
mum in that year. |

Has the business fallen off to the extent which you
have described ?—Yus. |

And can you ascribe the falling off to any caunse
except the yuot.tinf ?—No.

You have spoken of the difficulty of collecting debts
andsaid that you were prevented fromcollecting them.
How was that P—Simply because it was no use to get
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which would not be executed by the ordin

. The . statement applies generally to all ki
of decrees. This state of things has existed more o:
Jams ever since 1880. ' Before that year every man paid
hig debts honeésily ds best he eould.

Mr. REID.—F¥ understand-that your Lordships directed
‘tha# the O’Kelly letier might be seen, a.nd u stated
#0 to Mr. Asquith. fMyuﬁrlf 31%‘ = laﬂgd iend Mr.
Ell‘rinftnn ar for , . & presume we
are entitled tgplau the lettér. ;

The PRESIDENT. —Oartumly. it is intended that you

llmuld ;
- Mr. Reip.—And =p. we .all assumed, and when the
letter was in the hands of Mr. Asquith we endeavoured
$o0 see it, but we were denied possession.
nnn.i min INENT —‘lhll you tell me of whom you are
8
REID -.-I do nnt complain of Mr. Cunynghame,
m’aﬂlﬂl I u_umphin of .my learned friends on the

EI:RH JAM®S. —] ‘éan adsure thmhubeann
uimﬂonh.ndhg There van be no objection on our
part to your seeing the letter, -

The letter was lu.nded fo Mr. Beid. and the Com-
mission adiourned,
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Rev. Canon Griffin was the next witness. In reply
to the ATTORNEY-GENEKAL he said,—I went to
Castleisland in 1855. The place was then quiet aund
peaceable, aud the people were industrious and
religious. In 1857 I went to Killarney and I remained
there till 1872. At the end of 1872 I went to Mill-
street, and I have been there up to the present time,
From 1872 till 1880 the meighbourhood of Millstreet
was excessively peaceable. The people were quie
industrious, and religious. I kept an accurate accoun
of my communicauts, and I found that, taking an
average for the years between 1873 and 1879 inclusive,
they amounted ‘to 89,000 fmr annum.  In 1880 the
number of communicants fell off. The district, which
had been quiet and ceable, became disturbed, and
during 1881 and 188% there was a great falling off in
the number of people who attended to their religiouns
duties. The lﬁmnt majority of the people continued
very respectful towards me, though a lsmd number did
not. One of the male schools in Millstreet was boy-
cotbted -in’' consequence of the teacher, Wﬁm Reardon,
having given evidence at the Assizes at Cork. Reardon
hﬂminu&ly been in the school as a monitor. After-
w I appointed. him assistant teagher, and then
teacher- of the. jupior school. He hud been in the
- school from the time I went to Millstreet, and he
was a gdung man whose conduct was extremely well
regulated in every respect. A collector in my church
named Reardon, the father of the schoal teacher, was
also boycotted. One morning I was surprised to find
the gallery on one side of the transept almost empty,
while the gall on the other side was ernwdeg gn
excess. After the service I made inquiries, and found
that notice or word bhad been given to the people—I
do not know b¥ whom—not to enter by one door in
consequence of Reardon being the -collector there.
The elder Reardon, I think, also gave evidence,
I bhad a smaller church at Cullen, which was
attended by a man named O’Keefe, who had
been boycotted and was under police tectian,
Just vious to the service one Blmgo when
O’Keefe entered the church the people all got up and

28



PARNELLISM AND CRIME.

walked out. On all occasions I ched against out-
. ‘On December 25, 1881, I found a notice posted
m door of church, importing that I favoured
the “ tyrants ’’ of the country, and saying that those
who gave Christmas gifts to me would get buckshot.
ry time that an outrage had taken place in
m I bhad denounced it. A man named Jeremi
Reardon, a brother of the collector in the church, who
was boycotted, was secretary of jthe local branch of
the Land League. One day I was denouncing some
grime—I do not exactly remember what—when he
spoke out in church most offensively. My parish be-.
ecame disturbed immediately after the establishment of
the Land League. Up to that time rents were fairly
paid in my district. The outrages seemed to me to
arise out of mere vindictiveness and malice rather than
a0 g connected with the land. People were much
intimidated and often told me they were afraid to do
things they wanted to. , 1
. REID.—1 object to m‘i friend giving evidence of
what people said to Canon Griffin.
aﬁ?a PRESIDENT.—I think it is admissible as general
ence. '
~ Bxamination continued.—I believeé that a great many
people were coerced into doing ‘things which they did
not like. If I remember rightly, the League was first
?Bt;fluhod in the Millstreet district about 1880 or
- Oross-examined by Mr RErp.—There are a good many
utamf priests all over Ireland who are in sympathy
with the e, are there not 7—Thousands.
Who no doubt, like yourself, bave denounced ount-
l:lfan and crime 5—'?&17 possibly. I have heard so.
understood you to say that vindictiveness had a
od deal more to do with crime than the land ques-
on P—As far as my parish was concerned,I believe so.
Do you contend that the substantial basis of the Land
League was spoliation P—I do not say it was started for
ﬁaﬂt purpose, but when established it was used for that

-What was the condition of the Millstreet district in
1879, when the Land League was started ?—Ve
eable, as far as I remember. There was s go
Hquid{.mbo go, btit ift T.l at!u rﬁ:llut It was
abou e failare of the po orop.
Were the rents about Millstreet largely reduced by
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the Land Commissioners ?—They were, reduced by the
Commissioners and by the landlnrdl

Is it not the csse that reductions as a general rule
were opposed before the passing of the Lmd Act P—]
pever heard of cases where they were ref I kpow
that on several occasions I recommended e landlords
in the district to give substantial mduntmu, aod they
almost invariably adopted my suggestions.

You considered that the reductions were nm P
—Absolutel necamrﬂo I considered that a vux
portion of about Millstreet was over-
rented, and I was -urﬁnlad that the people n-unud
satisfied to pay such high rents.

You have told us that the Land League was misused ;
ﬂo ou not agree that the excessive rantl that m'ei-
vailed and the deep distress in consequence were the
causes which pruvuksd t-he l.gltatiun of 1879 P—It may
have been. £’1 could not admit
into my pa.n:h whi -.uaed 1rruhgmn or dis

1 am {‘ what -in your opinion m th
causes of tha agitation P—I believe that every agitation
thould be conducted within the wn.llu of the Ten Com-
mandments.

So. do I, but the . question I want to ask you is
whether - you do not think that the excessive rentals
were the cause. of the nmtltmn ?—I do no% think so.
I think that the people themselves were not the nmua

of - the 'e&p.tmn, but th:t it was the work of
_ to come. thu front and h Rrea

nut the . agitation get the sym the
panpla in 1879 ?— gldnmas: B pl F.Egﬂdm
quickly nfter it wu on

hat dn u think was the cl.m of the t
of the - League 7—When a
menented to the punplﬁ they look-at ih l:omi to
Whau d:d crimes our district P—~Boyeotti
ﬁm dt the end o 183113v I think that erhnuni
violenee classed in ﬁ-oﬂmmant returns as agrarisg
offences began in 1881,
Cross-examined by Mr. Lockwoop.~Do I understand
that you have been opposed to the Land League ffom

its "rm start P-—Yes.
Are you in the vosition., as far as your brethren ard
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conoerned u are standing alone in this quese
tion P—I du nnt ow that; I du not believe I I:lnq

Can you give me the name of one of gtmr brethren
who holds the same opinion on this subject that you
du P—I unnnnt

u give me the name of one in your district P—

In dmt.rint I believe all my clerical brethren sap-

rtm{hu Land League.

Holr many pnastn are there in ynur deanery
Eleven or twelve.

Was there, as far as you know, any agitation in your
district with ard to the matter of rent before the
establishment of the La.nd League P—Not to my know-

ledge
Vgu there mot a fair rent agitation i in 1878-9 P—
Not that I am aware of.
Have you heard of the Farmers’ Club ?—-Thnt was
not in Millstreet., When it is oubt of my distriet I
no attention to such thin
ﬁld you ever hear of it ?— es.
Where ‘was it hald 7~—At some placa 20 miles from
Millstreet.
Did you not haa.r in 1878-9 of anya tat-mn in favour
of the reduction of rent ?—-Nn, not that I remeémber..
Did not you yourself in the services in your church
in 1878-9 denounice an_agitation which was then going
on for the reduction of rent ?—Certainly not.
Not in your own church nnd from your own altar ?—
I do not think 0.
I ask fuu whether you did so or not ?~~I am almost
certain 1 did not.
It is not the sort of thing which you would have for-
mtten if you had done it /—The only allusion I made
m the altar at that time was when the Government
gave cheap lom, when I advised the farmers to meet
after the service, and they did meet for the purpose of
seeing what thay could do with ard to them.
That was not 1n 1878-9 ?—It was in 1879, T believe.
I am aski Euu with reference to the gourse you
pnrmad in 1878- I do not, however, wish to spend
time upon that. You esponsed the cause of
Hﬂlg F—I espoused the cause of morality.
d1 a.nyt hing about the ca.uaa of morality.
nu ahout He ﬂfsrt;r Are they synonymous
ou see you will . argue with ‘me instead of
Aswering my questions,
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The PRESIDENT.—Yes ; but he is. answering what
is implied in your question.

Examination continued.—Did you espouse the cause
of this man P~No. I was opposing the iniquity that
was going on, The man was boycotted.

Do you remember Hegarty starting a bakery on his
D‘H’ﬁl account ?_l{ do. s i 2 ting
o you recollect ing active steps in suppor

that bakery 7—No.

Do you remember a man named CJooper P—Yes,

Was he a rival of Hegarty’s P—He was a rival of all
bakers. (Laughter.) 3
. Do you recollect taking any active steps with
to Cooper ? What did you do P—~Other bakers told me
that he was selling {read much below the proper
weight, and I spoke of it from the altar., I cannot say
what I did. -

I am not asking vou that.—I cannot say what I did
unless you will allow me ¢to say what he did.
(Laughter.)

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—You shall have an op-
portunity of explaining afterwards. i
. Oross-examination . continued.—What did you =a
- from the, altar with regard to Cooper P—I -goka o

iallin ‘ bread that was short in weight as not being
onest. . _ :

You mean his underselling the other bakers P—It was
not. & question of underselling. It was a cnse of giving
short weight. ST
- Did you pay a visit to Cooper P—Certainly not.
NDid_Iﬁu take any other steps with regard to him ?—

0. : . :

Then what I understand is that you did mention th
fact from the altar that Cooper was not selling breas
as he ought to have done from your point of view P—
From the public point of view. :

By Mr. Davitt.—I have only a few questions to ask
E:. You say that the cause of the agitation was not
people themselves, but certain persons who wa
to come to the front and to create names for thems

selves P—VYes.

Does that observation apply to Bishops and to priests !
—I do not know that they initiated the agitation, buf
even lf_tha¥ did that would not prevent me from taking
the action I did in the matter._ :

I am not questioning your right to take any action
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you might think fit to adopt. I ask you whether your
.mhbifhn did not take a prominent part in assisting
the agitation P—I do not know.

Do you not know that he took an active part in the
hliﬂl.éun of the Land League movement?—I do not
know that. :

You have told us that you preached against outrage
‘always. Did you ever preach against evictions ?—
There were only five or six in my parish, and ‘' in those
I was obliged in the interests of peace to interfere
to get them settled. i

In the interests of peace aswell as of justice ?—.

Yes. | , L
You bélieved that evictions caused very h-.c! feeling
and distarbance P—Yes. I believed that, und cubtedly.

But evictions of every kind will cause angry feelngs
on _the part of the evicted ?—Nnturi:l_lg; R ;

Do you remeniber the evictions which followed the
famine of 11848-49 7—I was a boy at' that: time, bat I
g that there were very cruel evictions at that

Do you remember the year 1849 ?—Not specially.
It was the year before I went to college. 2] 4

It was a.year of great disturbance in Ireland, was if
not ?—I should u& 80, but I do not recollect myself.

Do you know that there were over 200 agrarian
murders in 1849 ?—No, I do not. I was a boy at the
time. I may say this—that there were no agrarian
murders committed in the county of Kerry for 30 or
40 years until Poff and Barrett were executed.
believe, though, that there was one agrarian murder
which was committed in the county the year before I
went to Castleisland, but that I understood to be the
result of a family feud.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL.—He is speaking of 1854.

Cross-examination continued.—Are you a native of
+ I think you say that you advised the landlords teo
give reductions ?—Yes.

Thén that was in the interests of peace as well as
justice ?—It was.

Then you thought that substantial reductions of remt
w conduce to geaca ?—Most decidedly.
- You have sdid that the people were coerced into

the agitation in your district ?—~Undoubtedly.
t - many people would mot have joined in fhe
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agitation of the Land League had they not been com-
pelled to do so.

Do you remember the land agitation in 1852 ?—No.

I Bu}}pnne that you know that it was not continuous ?
—No, I do not.

You say that you sympathized with Mr, Hegarty
because he was boycotted? I am not lpubtiug this
qﬁt:sbion to you in an offensive manner. If you think
that I am I will apologize beforehand. You have, I
suppose, read ‘'a very able letter written by Me.
Hegarty and addressed to myselt P—I do not think I
read it. I believe that he read it to me soon after
he had written it and he complained to me that you had
not answered it.

There may be a question as to my having answered
it. But whbat I wish to ask you is, Did you write that
letter for him ?—No, certainly not. Mr. Hegarty can
write a letter as well as anybody in this court.

By Mr. Biggar.—Now, how do you define an unjust
eviction P—A case where a man did his best to pay his
rent—did not allow himself to fall into these farg-e
arrears, and paid what he could. If in such eircum-
stances a landlord was eruel enough to eviet him that
would, in my opinion, be an unjust evietion.

Have you ever known of an unjust eviotion ?—Yes.

You bhave told us that you preached against outrages.
Have you .ever pfeached against unjust evictions ?—-
I do not consider that there were any unjust evictions
in my parish, and therefore I did not thLink it neces-
sary to preach against them, In a large number of
cases the matter was settled. z :
. Then you did not. preach against unjust evictions or
extortionate rents ?~There was no necessity. . It was
not for me.as a priest in an agricultural district to
raise a storm. :

Is not extortion a sin P—It is.

And yet at the same time you did not preach against it ?
—There are two sides to the yuestion. believe
that the landlords were to blame and that the tenants
were to blame also, because the farmers offered such
enormous rents that they tempted the landlords to
accept rents which they could not pafy Then I saw
that the tenants when they saw a farm to be sold
would offer fabulous sums for it.

Did you preach against land-grabbing or covetous-
ness ?—There was noland-grabbing in my district. What
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WAS ?ha necessity for preaching against wnat dia nob
exist

Are not you the only priest in your district who has
identified himself with the landlords P—1 have not identi-
fied myself with the landlords more than any other
priest. I love the people as much as any other priest,
and I have gone as far to serve them.

Have you ever written a letter to a paper called the
Union in Dublin ?—No.

Your relatives are, I believe, very much in sympathy
with Lord Kenmare ?—My brother was his physician
and I was his chaplain some years ago, and some of
my relatives were tenants on the Xenmare estates.

Therefore your family was very clorely identified
with Lord Kenmare in every way ?/—I should be glad
to be identified with Lord Kenmare in any way, because
there is not a better landlord in Ireland.

"~ Are you aware that in Kerry there is more crime than
in any other diocese in Ireland ?—Unfortunately there is.

And the Bishop of Kerry happens to be one of the
‘very few Bishops who take the part of the landlords.
against the people ?~1 am very glad you have asked
-mahthﬁ question.- The Bishop of Kerry has done no
such thing.. <« ¢ loims .. 5} 4

Re-examined by the ATTORNEY-GENERAY,.—How long

o did the Ugoper - incident ta g place P—The year
after I went to Millstteet—in 1873, - = .
" ‘Mr. RED.—If it is not inéonvenient to Canon Griffin,

erhaps he had better remain in London, as Sir Charles

ussell might wish to ask him a few questions..
The PRESIDENT,—Not unless you can put forward

some special object to be gained.

The Commissioners then adjourned at 20 minutes
past 4 o’cloek.
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WeDNESDAY, JULY 17,

- When the witness left the box the PRESIDENT
called Dr. Tanner, M.P., who tharaupﬂn entered the
witness-box.

The PrESIDENT said that Dr. Tanner had been re-
presented by counsel and the Court understood that he
was prepared to give evidence.

* Dr. Tanner.—My Lords, I w:.l.l give every fnt'.lhty I

possibly can to the inﬁuu'i(

Cross-examined b URPHY.~~You do not wish
to make any lhtamant yourself, D¢. Tanner, before I
examine you ?—If !nu wish to m:nu-eumine me I
'hﬁlh t?"ak statement, I & gmﬂ:t

ou w make a
it II’I convénient tlmamyW'h ]’ﬂt}l the
House P—In 1885 ; I first began to take a puhlic part
in mhhu a lqw ars before that. |

Hu.tmnnhsb pp.rtj' ?—No, I ﬂld nof
jum ﬂ:a Natiodalist party.

'Whﬁn did you become connacbe& with the Nnhoml

Leagie P—I rather imagine I ‘joined the H’atinml

ne in 1884.
t was the’ brumh ?—The Cxty of Cork.

And in connexion with it did you become I..r: uainted
with its operations thmughuut the county of Cork ?—
No, I cannot say I did ; merely in Cork city I did
nut IEOIBSE any uuuntry meetings until at or about

ior to that were you acquainted with the working
ef the League in Cork ?—Oh dear no.
Aboat illu‘h'eat ?—I practically knew mnothing
about Millstreet. The first time I went there wasas s
est of Mr. Aubrey Maurice. I did not go again until
e occasion of Mr. Coleman’s sale. He was the pre«
gident of the National League at Millstreet. That was
the date of one of the meetings—December 15, 1885,
Joining the Land League or the National Lna.gu
you became acquainted with the doctrines that were
preacbed by those at the head of it P—I suppose so,

in a general way. "
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~ Boycotting ?—Well, I was very viciously boycot
I:n;na at that tuna, and it wg because I was n'::?-
50 boycotted and because my ptmuea in the ci
nf rk was destroyed. I was earning
income in the eity of Cork before tha month
in that year, and w anmybunmaau was. destro
the Conservatives— he supporters of law and
m.lled self-styled- —-m the city of Cork the paupla
came o my assistance. I was elected ician
surgeon to ntaral tiopuhr societies of some of the
poorer people, and ?lﬁ came fo my assiste
ance, und ncnnrdmg I took from that time a greater
mrt in politics than I had previously done.
ntting practised fo any exbtent in Cork
ron became connected - with the League ?—I
think was nob enough prmtuad. because I thought
if the head of the Cork magistracy was
to have me boycotted, to have Charliec Tanner
out of Irel by dapri me of the means
of earning my dli.lyhmnd I thought if he was fit to
do that the paopln were perfectly entitled to practise
W order to enable them to mhm ‘E.a
wives their fiﬂhihu. I thought they might it
more, without, of gcourse, having recourse to on
plattor "’:ﬂf?;ﬂ?ﬁ‘“"%‘a X mogl..a et what
orm ed outto the pe - by
-was fair in imy cise was for
E:utlm——'lht wis ssuce thh guua was uuu £u!

ng on of H:mm who think it a proper thing

'Eonmln mud fptobohojmihd?—

Well, ititwfnr or them %o 1tnﬂl

me, 1 think i ‘was perfectly fair to use :
libical wupnn for the side I now belo

E  same weapon as that of Turin

in cuunt;r 'Uori, and which is now extensively used by
th% til m?inedth Leq'ua were Il'-thli.
n o e aw
E gl‘:: were boyootted were ofh“ P
n. I was not ; I knew nothing aboub i§ except from
m‘ L ]
“Did "you hear anything about it in 1862-3 P—From

Iha
Yg;pﬁln“ no reason to doubt that what was said

Rnpun that subject was trae P—I have many reasops fo
ubb,
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Speaking generally, Dr. Tanner ?—Speaking gene-
ullpaof wh;% the papers contain there is a grnf::_nf
truth in a great number of reports, and in that
way people who have beeu boycotted may have been
subjected to outrage. . '

I have snme questions to ask you with reference to
the Prince of Wales’s visit to Cork in 1885, Unsted
‘Ireland says that as the Royal procession was passing
the Queen’s College ‘‘a Union Jack was torn
from its post and torm to shreds, amid cheers for
Parnell.” Was that the case ?—I know nothing at
‘all about that. : .
"~ The report continaes :— e

¢¢ During the rest of the Prince's stay hisses were
the order of the day, and several -loyal *Km men
were severely beaten. The last thing ¢ ﬁri‘nua
heard as he left the city was * God save Ireland,’
sung along the quays by thousands of people. The

rformance was frequently varied with cheers for the

ahdi, Parnell, Oroke, and $he Cszar, and groans for
the British Government. The Nationalist mayor,
Alderman Madden,was carried on the. shoulders of the
erowd, and Mr. John O’Connor, M.P., was loudly
cheered . wherever he went. Mr. O’Connor, Dr.
Tanner, Mr. J. C. Flynn, and other speakers after-
‘wards addressed a large gathering of citizens.””
‘Isthata correct description ?—I only know that I did
‘address a meeting from the windows of the National
League rooms. It was but a stuttering utterance on
the spur of the moment. 1 think that was the first
time I ever sapoke in public. As to the pulling down
of the Union Jack I saw nnthing of the kind.

You would not have approved of it, I suppose ?—
Certainly not.

Your next appearance was on August 29, 1885, at
Kealkill, Cork. You are reported to have said :—

‘““Dr. C. Tanner called on the people present
several times for God’'s sake to hn{uutt every man,
woman, and child that would not be true, and join
the national cause. He told the people to be careful
and not to purchase an article from any one but a
Nationalist, and if this would not take effect the
steel would ‘ be gob.’ ’? '

Did you use that language ?—Certainly not. I
wish, my Lords, to find out where these reports
came from. I bhave asked for copies of the speeches
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attributed to me, but I have not been supplied with
them. I want to know whether they come from the
Cork Constitulion or from police reporters.

Who was your counsel until yesterday P—Well,
there were several counsel.

Do you not know who your counsel was ?~I had
written to two counsel from Galway Gaol, Mr, Lock-
wood and Mr. A. O'Connor, the _latter' has
replied. I suppose both these gentlemen had charge
of my case, but Mr. Lockwood is the senior.

When did you go to prison ?—~On May 2. ,

- Who were your solicitors ?~I presume Messrs.
Lewis and Lewis were.

Do you not know that copies of these speeches were
delivered to Mr. Lewis on your behalf as long ago as
November P—I cannot say that. I have applied
again and again for copies of these speeches, and
have not succeeded in  obtaining them. I have
applied to my counsel and to My. Lewis. When a
E.em'ilin-gml_mtn'{.-!um have to be complied with

fore he ean obtain even documents which he &
entitled to have. This may account for my not having re<
ceived the speeches. At anyrate I didnot get them.

_ Are you aware that this particular speech was give
in evi aﬁm long ago ?~I ‘was not aware of that.
sbould like to know from what source that speech
came, a8 an accusation is founded upon it. :

You are aware that your counsel admitted this
,: _ Thr'mnﬁ Pl am pot aware ‘of anything of
the 3 : 1 il
The PRESIDENT.~I hope we shall not have to call
Mr. Lockwood as a witness. (Laughter.)

- Mr. MORPRY.—Is it true that Em ** called on the
people several times for God’s sake to boyeott pr:ﬁ
man, woman, and child that would not true '
join the national cause’ ?—Itisvery hard to remember
what I said at this distance of time. To the best of
.my récollection I did not say that, but I will not
‘Bwear oné way or the ofher, -

Did you tell the E&upla ‘‘ not to purchase an
article from anyone but a Nationalist '’ ?—That is
vaBy_ likely ; I have frequently told the people that.
" Did you say ** If this would not take effect the
stéel would ’' ?—Certainly not. There was no short-
hand reporter at this meeting as far as I know, Your
long police reporters have repeatedly sworn to
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tt_im:u:neu than it was possible for them to have taken
own,

Did you say at Coachford on November 8, 18856 :—
*¢ Now, to my mind, the evictor is a mere bird of
prajy, something like the hawk, sometimes descending
as low as the carrion crow, but when you want to get
an actual land-grabber you have to go to that foul b
the vulture to find him—a bird that fattens himself
upon dead carrion which is strewn about the land. -
One is merely a bird of prey ; the other is a rapacious
beast, too low, too filthy to take cognizance of, too
low to denounce. He is like the leper in the East,
or like that other gentleman ; and, like such a
noisome creature,we should treat }nim in the only way
in which he onght or can be treated ; we should leave
him severely alone ; leave him to his noisome pesti-
lential company ; let him revel in his own baseness’’?
—I cannot swear to every word -that you have read,
but I certainly have denounced land-grabbers to the
- best of my ability. (Laughter.) .. = :
{L'fh'ahfgnx)m:nlnm.-—- 8 that the best of your ability ?

ughter. :

Mr. MURPHY.~I think not, my Lord. . -
hﬂ?y this point, it being 4 o’clock,-the Commissioners

ourned. ' - i Tt

TaUurSDAY, JULY 18.

The Bpecial Commission held their 109th sitting to-
day in No. 1 Probate Court of the Royal Courts of
Justice.

On the Commissioners’ taking their seats,

_Mr. M. Harris. entered the witness-box and said,=
My Lords, I mentioned yesterday Mr. Breunan and
Mr. Hgan a8 members of the Fenian body. I shoulé
also have mentioned that some years previous to m)
own resignation in 1880 they bhad severed officially
their connexion with the organization, on ground:
eimilar, or nearly similar, to those upon which I
severed mine—namely,their connexion with the publie
movement. At the time of the establishment of the
Land League, neither of these gentlemen, so far as
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my knowledge goes, was connected with the Fenian
organization.

IR H. JAMES,—There is a letter of the 19th of
December, 1877, Mr. Harris, the copy of which you
ke of as being misleading ; where shall we

at letter P '

Mr. M. Harris.—]I oan give you thab letter in full.

The PRESIDERT.—You promised to mark certain
passages in your ches to which you wished to
call our attention P—] find, my Lords, that I had
marked some points.

Dr. Tanner, M.P,, then re-entered the witness-box.
He said,—I wish to make an explanation before
cross-examination belgim again, I bhave looked and
Eoalbill, seash | Pis Mésses s Bash wrsns agale

es - imes en wrong 3
the speech was not delivered on the 23d of July,
1885. The Attorney-General was also
endeavouring to correct The Times, as he that
lhan?o"euh was delivered on the 29th of Lmn s but
I that the speech was delivered omn 234 of
AH t, and reported on the 24th in the Cork Daily

erald.

S8Ir H. JAMES.—I% was not a mistake origi on
the part of the Attorney-General. In o
statement he mentions that 1t was on the 23d

AW'
mﬁnﬂ—ﬂvm the Attorney-General is nob ine
ible. :
Bre H, JAMES.—I did not say he was.
Mr, MurrEY then contin the cross-examination
Dr. Tanner.
Do those words about boyco men, women, and

nhildrafn a - tin_ that speech !—No, not to the
of m of.
Do you think that perhaps the did not choose

to report the words of that cha r P—I am no judge
of the re r's judgment. This is the Nmaminer
report. It is nearly the same in the Herald.

s there anything about boycotting #~I spoke of

ba%uutﬁ:n'.

as there nothing about boycotting land-grabbers ?
=No ; I do not think I I,;Jka much sbout land.
grabbers. I did not know much about land-grabbers
w$ that time.
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Are there any words abt all corresponding to whab
has been suggested P—Distiuctly not. There are no
- wurds to that effect. ?

Then, either the reporter must have invented those
words ur they were not uttered P—Distinetly. I
gincerely trast I had more sense than that. I would
point out, my Lords, that Mr. Gilhooly’s speech,
which is in the same volumeof the Cork Daily Herald,
has been underlined by the counsel or the solicitor
for The Times, and that they have paid no attention to
m{)I eech. o g} : .

- Did you speak at Coachford on the 8th of November,

1885 ?—Yes. ,

Did you use these words :— ; :

* Now, my friends, in coming here to-day it was
not'my intention or oi:jent oo this present ocesasion to
opén my candidature for Mid Cork, the constituency
for which it pleased our great leader, Charles Stewars
Parpell, t0 nominate me. It was not my intention
for m reasons, In the first place, I. have not been
here before, and it was more suited that Macroom,

.being the largest town in this great division of Mid
Cork, and being a very central place, it was more
suited that I should commence in the town of  Ma-
croom, (Hear, hear.) But hearing of a monster meet«
ing being assembled in Coachford to demounce those
erimes which stain the face .of the earth, to denounce
land-grabbing and grass-grabbing, and the villains
who lend themselves to such fuu{ practices, I, after
being nominated b{!lir. Parnell, thought I would not
be doing my duty I did not come down here
take part in your proceedings to-day.”’

~] would like to know whence this report comes.

This is the repurt which was proved at the time
when you were represented by Mr. Lockwood and
other gentlemen. id you use this language ?—I
ecould not be perfectly certain of what el
used many years ago. '

Mr. MurPHY (continuing to read) :— _

‘‘ Now, to my mind, the evictor: is a mere bird of
prer. something like the hawk, sometimes descending
as low as the carrion crow ; but when you want to
get an actual land-grabber,you have to go to that foul
bird, the vulture, to find him—a bird that fattens him=
self upon dead carrion which is strewn aboutb the

land.’’
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Did you use these words ?7—I may have used words |
to that effeet. I denounced land-grabbing as strongly
as I could,

Mr. Murpny (continuing) :—

** One is merely a bird of prey, the other is a
rapacious beast, too low, too I'!lth{ to take cognizance
of, too low to denounce. He is like the leper in the
East—or like that other gentleman ; and, like such a
nvisome creature,we should treat him in the only wa
in which he ought or can be treated. We shoul
leave him severely alone ; leave bhim to his noisome,
pestilential company ; let him revel in his own base-
ness. Now, friends, if we will give this treat-
ment to this class of creature, what are we to do to
the men who sustain them ? We have known and we
have read that quite recently there is a society which
has arisen in our midst—a society which puts itself
up as the I.L.D.U. Well, my friends, these initials
I.L.D.U., they are copied from a society which
existed in Ireland in times gone by. I allude to the
men of, '67—the I.R.B. Their initials méan the Irish
Loyal Defence Union, which practically means a
certain number of gentlemen—gentlemen with a point
of interrogation—who are banded togethor to -put
money in their own pockets at the expense of all
other classes ; themselves first and everybody else
after—and these men come forward with a long pro-
gramme, .Thesé gentlemen who call themselves the
Cork Defence -Union, theL put forward =a long pro-
gramme, and they tell us that they are coming forward

-to the defence of the boycotted creatures wlho have
suffered from that iniqritous system that Las been
allowed in our midst by the League of Hell.

do not call it any other nAme ; t would send us
there quick enough if thev only had power. These
nentlnmennrecumfﬂg to therelief of the boycotted, Who
are the boycottéd in the countyof Cork? You will find,
in the first instanee, that there are very few landlords
actually boycotted in the county of Cork. The un-
fortunate fellows—they are at their last gasp ; and
they are going, going, and at last gone. (Cheers.)
The landlords not being boycotted people, who are
the boycotted people ? I maintain the boycotted
people are the grabbers—the grabbers whom we have
come here to-day to denounce. These are the boy-
cotted people, these are the vultures, these are t
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lepers, these are the men who deface the face of this
earth. If they are coming to the defence of the
grabbers, I think we ought to leave them severely
alone, and the measure we mete out to the grabber we
uuﬁht to extend to his defender.””’

Did you use those words ?—I may have wused
hml&: to that effect ; but I hope it made better
sense than what is reported there.

Were mui men Nycntt-ed in Cork for what you
call land-grabbing ?—No, I nnli knew of two peoEu
who were boycotted in,Mid Cork at or about or
that time ; one was Jeremiah Heg y and the other
Dr. Oross, who has since been by Mr.
- Balfour.

Do you mean fo that yon have not heard that
throngh the county of Cork gemnerally many ‘people

weré suffering lﬂ}m boycotting ?—I1 was suffering from

buﬁuotting =
id you not know that numerous persons throughout
‘the county were suffering from boycotting ?—I have
heard of 1t ; but I am speaking on oath, and I say I
do nob now remémber the names of any others than
thaose I have given as being specifically boycotted.
I am speaking of a class. Were there a nums=
of fenpln boycotted at that time ?P—No ; I was
trying to get land-grabbers boycotted, and for that
m«a I spoke strongly, in order, if possible, to
lenge her Majesty’s Government to_prosecute me,
in order that boycotting might be tried out, whether
it was fair to boycott me asrepresenting the people.
It was a fair cha e. . .

Do you say that you did not know that Euplu were
being boycotted ?—I say that I did not know of any
individual cases other thoee I have given.

“‘ These gentlemen are coming to the relief of the
bk;yaottod." Who were the boycotted P—I1 do mnot

ow.

¢ T maintain the boycotted people are the grabbers
—+the grabbers whom we have come here to-day to
denounce.’”” How do you reconcile that langua
with the answer you have given ?—I said that I oou
not give you any names of persons boycotted in county
Cork other than those two names. know that there
was boyunttini. I heard of ‘it or read of its be

: “-: but I had only & general acquaintance wi

e Ia
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T think I asked you about a class P—I was not well«
informed on the subject. I was trying to advocate
hn?eotting to the best of my ability.
© ¢ These are the boycotted people ’’ P—I do not
admit that I used those words.

Do you deny them P—I will not deny them, but I
will not admit them. I cannot do either one or
P o t that time that Hegarty was b
© Were you aware at that time e was boy«
cotted ?11 think it was some time after this.

Before this were you acquainted with the fact ?—
No; I had only the slightest acquaintance with
Hegarty before this. I met him on this first ocoasion
when 1 was on a visit to Lishane Castle. There was
a meeting at Millstreet. I could not tell you the
date of that. It was some years before. 1 was pre-.
sent at a meeting at Millstreet on the 15th of
December, 1885. was made more acquainted with
Hegarty on that occasion.

ere you aware -that inm 1880 or 1881 he had been
boycotted by the Land League of the place P—I did
nn{ know how long he had been boyeotted. e
. When you were at Millstreet were you aware that
he had been fired at 'in April- of the same year P—I
" Do yoi mean Ahat I dog:carjatbly |

0 you mean -] 'do, cert e :

- When did: you first hear that the man had been fired
at in April, 1885 ?—] heard nothing about it. I may
bhave seen something- in the papers ; but I knew
nothing about it. e T g
. Will you swear that you did not hear it or see it in
" the papers that he had been. fired at P—I. counld not
-6wear as to what I saw in the papers, To the best of
‘my.ability I say that 1 knew nothing about it.

. Did you c¢all him ‘‘ a low creeping reptile living in
their midst, who used all his influence in maligning
the people amongst whom he lived, and who was en-
deavouring to eclimb to the magisterial bench, bub

who woul fat be relegated to the lowest depths of a
felon’s cell ; and an infamous being who did not
deserve the name of being, whose proper dmtmn
would be a thins ; but whom you would the
lowest of created beings—a creeping louse *? P—I
certainly called him a louse. I would like your
Lurdnlnfs to understand what had occurred in that
case, had been elected member for Mid-Cork a
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wery short time before, and Hegarty was, practically

-speaking, the only person in that district who had
organized any opposition, I was elected by a majority
of 5,000, nm:f e opposition was a. purely factious
opposition, and He n.rt{y was my primiilpa. olitical
opponent. I attended this meeting at Millstreet ; I
bad not been there at the time of my election, mri it
was my first opportunity of hitting back at Hegarty
for the way in which he had behaved in the election.

You knew that he had been boycotted for many years,
before that 7—Only in a general way ; I knew very
little about it. ' ; _ ,

Do you think that those words, coming from you as
the elected member for the oconstituency, would be
likely to have effect ?—I think no more effect than
that of boycotting him as I was boycotted myself. - I
always denounced oufrage. , :

Are you aware that he was subsequently shot P—I
bheard he was shot ; but I have my own doubts as to
that from what I heard afterwards. I heard from
people about there that the shot was fired from off the -
car on which Hegarty was sitting ; that there were
two policemen e¢lose by ; and that when they
challenged him he did not stop, but drove back. 1%
was o strange coincidence. [ was ready to donounce
that as an outrage if I had known it to be such. I
mway say, in the first place, that there was not a
regular meeting at Mill-street on this oecasion.

gfha_ PRESIVDENT.—I do not think that that is
material.

Witness.—Very well, my Lord. ;

Mr. MuerPHY.—The evideuce of the constable is
that he was present at a meeting. Did you say that
*¢ as long as Mr. Jeremiah Haﬁla is in your midst
there will never be peace in Millstreet ’’ ?/—Yes ; I
thought, from what I learnt that day about Hegarty
that he was one of the iwo people who had created
all the trouble in Millstreet. went down to the
sale of Cronin’s effects. He was clearing his farm,
All the tenants on that property were threatened with
eviction, and were trying to soll their stock, and the
first thing I heard of Lim was that the whole thing
was being done by Hegarty ; that he was the fons cf
origo not only of the evictions which were then
threatened, but of all the evictions that had occurred
for some time nast. He was spoken ill of on all
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sides, and I put it straight to the people whether they
did not wish him out of the district; whero he was
promoting disorder.

- _ You wanted him removed ?-—-ﬁertn.h:‘inlr not removed
in any wrong or improper way, Mr. Murphy.

Had he refused to submit to the dictation of the
local League P—That occurred in 1881. I bhad no
connexion in the world with politics then ; I heard it
mhutu:]mnti in this Court.

On the of January, 1886, did you attend a meet-
ing at Ballyvoumey P—Yes. Might I say one or two
words about this Hegarty, my Lords ? There was
dnother matter which prajnﬁice:i me .Eﬁm:lfil against
Hegarty. A friead of mine, Mr..-John M’C Eﬂﬂlﬂm
I attended in my medical ecapaecity, and who was
High BSherift of Cork, had taken Hegarty from the
Macroom Workhouse and set himup, nng'am loyed him,
and Hegarty got on very well. Subsequently Huﬁl.rg:f
tried tuthwmng him.k 1 tl;ﬁ Master ob the ":Efl y 10

ing the case, spoke in the strongest possible wa
Eli"y l:faga.rt:y’n conduct towards lﬁs employer mﬁ
benefactor.  That made me dislike the man.

In common fairness, if you had these thi in your
mind, ought they not to have been referred to at the
time when Hegarty was cross-examined ?—1 supplied
my counsel with a certain number of facts in con-
nexion with this matter. I had very libth_upportnnit{
of searching into all these thinﬁ:. and many of them
have only been able to prove absolutely since then.:

- Did you allude to this in any speech 7—I made s
-ebatement. I made a speech at Moll M'Carthy’s-bridge,
“when I was undertaking a tour. That speech wo _
“appear in the Cork Daily Herald of January 26, 1887.
Did you say this of Mr. Hegarty :—*¢* What was this
‘miserable creature’s histor ?B Hyé' was taken from the
‘Macroom Workhouse by Johu M’Carthy. He nurtured
a viper -in his bosom, and they knew what return he
made to John M’Carthy.’’ Is that all you said about
him ?—] think I said more. ' .

May I also ask you, in proportion as Mr. Hegarty '
was unpopular in the dipmf:t it would be more
dangerous to usesuch language of him ?—No ; I always
Bpoke against outrage.

" In a speech on January 3 did you describe Heg
as ‘¢ a foul, corrupt lump of carrion’’ #—I may have.
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On August 25 did you againvisit Millstreet ?—Before
you go to that may I also read a paragraph? I
spoke against oufrage. ‘ i

Dr. Tanner then read a 'passage in which he
mlmd _and besought the people to be calm

patient in their present frying circum-
stances. Their opponents were trying to promote out-
rages. By preserving law and order they would con-
demn them a thousandfold ; they would send their
bum-bailiffis to the right about, would practically
make them swallow their own writs, and would
ptrengthening .tenfold their representatives who were
ﬁ:ppnrtén: the cause of Home: Rule in an alien Par=-

ament,

‘Mr. MurPHEY.—On August 256 at Millstreet did you
gay this :—*¢ When the sore of & patient was irritated
inztmmatinn get in, and the inflammation thab

now set in should be brought to a point ’’ ?—I. .
ceartainly could not have said that. To the best of my
belief I said nothing of the sort. I shonld not like
to stake my professionsl reputation on a statement
like that. always tried to speak common sense. -

Did you speak of He?gl.rty as ‘‘ the rotten carrion
of these landlords ’’ ?—Yes. This was after the
second election, my Lords. 1 : . !

The next occasion about which I wish fo ask you is
December 1, I think you were one of those who sup-
mnrtad Tim'Hurlaiy when hru:t%ht to trial for being in

possession of dynamite ?—¥Yes, I was one of
those who escorted him to the Court-house. I did
hear that there was a minor charge against him of
- bhaving some?dynamite in his possession, but I think

that charge was dismissed. I certainly did escort
bhim from the railway station to the Court-house.
Eu the Court.) Your Lordships would perhaps like to

ow a little more about that. On that occasion I

my head opened. I was on a car with my friend
Mr. O'Connor. I had been down to Bandon, and I
arrived from there in the same train with Hurley.
When I drove up to the Court-house I noticed a series
of assaults on the people, and when I saw an old
woman knocked down with a policeman’s sword I
umped down from the car to remonstrate. I was

n struck on the head by a baton, receiving & wound
an inch long, While I was lying in a senseless con-
ditjon on the ground, although- some of the police une
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dounbtedly saved my life, others of them tried to kick
me in the ribs. As a matter of fact the magistrates
brought in a true bill against the inspector who was
in command on that occasion, but the Government
quashed it.

Examination continued.—On December 5 did you
speak at Inchiquin' to this effect :—‘‘ Now is the
time to stand stern and steadfast, not to let any man
go behind the back of his brother man. Any man.who
attempts to do so is a coward and &' miscreant, and
should meet with what those miscreants deserve.
They should be branded with the sign of infamy and
abhorred as men ought to abhor them. I truss there
are nobt any in this disbrict, and I feel certain thab
you will bring others into the path which will lead
to the emanecipation of the Irish tenaunt-farmer ’’ P—
Yes : that is the Plan of Campaign.

Did you use that lang ?—I daresay I did. ~ 1
would like to say, my Lords, that that refers to the
Plan of Campaign on the Ponsonby estate, which is
now a matter of controversy, and I think Mr. Hurg)hy
would have done better if he had not brought it out. -

I am dealing with your statement ?7—I challenge
your statement that any speech of mine ever led
any outrage. TR

n January 25, 1887, were fyou at Cooldorrihy ?—I

was. That was also a Plan of Campaign meeting.

.. Did you refer to the police and say that the mothers
- who .gave them birth' should be ashamed of them, that
the women of the place should not speak to them, and
- that fathers and mothers should take care of their
daughters, and brothers should watch their sisters P—"
Certainly. I was/always very proud of the Millstreet -
‘people. ' The mén had the finest physiqué. of any in m
constituency, and the people were always very kind
to me, and 1 always praised them up whenever I gof
an opportunibty.

They understood your language and ﬁ‘:l understood
them ?—I did not hint at any outrage, Mr. M

Was there a thorongh understanding between you
and them ?—I hugo I understood them. I have always
fried to represent them to the best of my ability.

‘Are you aware that some men visited the houso of &
man named Murphy and cut off the "hair of hia
daughter and tarred her head, telling her not again
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to speak to the poiice 7—Yes, I am awsare of that.
On many occasions I have told the women in my
constituency to bovcott the police. I have told them
they ought not to be seen uﬁeakipg to the police. 1
bave told the girls again and again to have nothing to
say to policemen. That outrage occurred in the month
of February. I was in London at the time. 1 at once
made inquiry about it. It was demounced by the
National League in Millstreet immediately after it
occurred, and ﬁmmd that the outrage was not alto-
gether as bad as it was stated to be in the papers. I
considered it'an iniquitous thing and a stain -om the
district, and I took the first possible ol?ortnnity in
the following autumn to refer to it and to tell the

ople they ought to be ashamed of it. 1 spoke in

acroom. I cannot (fiw you the date now. I should
say the speech would be in the Heruld. I bave been
in prison, and have not had the opportunity of hunting
up all these speeches.

The next speech, to which I will call your attention
was delivered on January 25, 1887, at Cooldorrihy, in
which you are reported to have said :—'¢ If a soldier
enlisted in the Army was required by his colenel to
march with his: comrades to meet the enemy at the
gap, fell out of the ranks, well, he would be shot, do

ou mind. Well, the men who will not obey me as

eir colonel and join the National League, well, I
would not say they should be shbot, do you mind, but
they should be roughly treated. But I won’t be ac-
countable for their lives, and maybe the daylight
would be seen through I;Lsm in bullet-holes, do you
" mind.”” Did you use that language ?—I certainly
never said anything like that. I am perfectly certain
I did not make use of that Imghnsfa. I went down
there because there was a squabble in the League.
They wanted to have two Laugluas in the district, and
I was determined there should be only ome. The
speech I made was delivered at a meeting. There
were only a few policemen there,and they never came
mto the fleld where I was speaking.

‘At all events, Dr. Tanner, you deny having used
those words ?—1 do.

Mr. MURPHY.—This speech, my Lords, has not been
E_rt- in, though it was referred to by the Attorney-

oneral in his opening. Perhaps it would be better
that it should be read now. (The learned counsel
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then read the speech at length, ending up with the
words above quoted.) .

Witness.—I deny having used those words. I went
down there to reconcile differences that had occurred
in the National League.

Mr. MurpHY.—Did Mr. John Slattery say this P—I
would suggest that he should answer for himself.

In your presence, Dr. Tanner, did Mr. Slattery
say that they should take the advice of their repre-
sentative, Ireland’s darling, Dr. Tanner, and unite
like one man to gain their independence ﬂy constita-
tional means, and if that failed, to say *¢ Bﬁﬂ-od.
we’ll gain it by physical force *” 7~—~I am sure I can-
not say what Mr. Blattery said. I will tell you this,
Mr. Murphy. I have frequently said that if ‘constitu-
tional means failed in Ireland I for one would be per-
fectly willing to engage in a physical force move-
ment.

Did you on that occasion in another speech say fo
the 'm?ple that they should go round and boycoftt
every trader who had not got that nice litile green
thing, the c¢ard- of the ational League, in
window ? That is from the report of Sergeant Brady.
-—,itlm perfectly certain I never said anything of that
sort. : o >

Did: you hear of Mr. Hegarly being shot at in
August, 1886 7—Yes. -

What is the suggestion you make as to that ? -That

ke wounded himsaft_' ?—1 was told that the ﬁ::&;‘:uunn
amongst the people ‘was that the shot was ‘off; the
car. ' : :
-Accidentally or not r—I cannot tell.

Did you read hig evidence.?—I did not.

Are you aware that he was. cross-examined by Mr.
Arthur O’Connor on gour behalf ?—Yes. )

And that no such suggestion was made by him P—

8g.
Do you t that your counsel had any informa-
tion u{ tha‘:EE:eter uf’ which you speak P—I can-
not tell you what information he had.
Did you give any information to either of your
counsel on the point P—I did.
To which of them ?—I think Mr. Arthur O’Connor.
- (To_the Court.) I should like to ain to your
ordships that a mistake was made by Mr. Arthur
O’Connor. Affer a meeting on August 5, 1886, the
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windows of the Protestant church were broken by two
small boys, sons of employés of Jeremiah Hegarty.
This was an incident that Hegarty was cross-ex-
amined upon, and I want to tell your Lordships what
I know about the matter. The windows of a Pro-
testant church were broken, and the allegation is
that I was present at the meeting. The extraordinary
circumstance was that two boys, who were sons of
men who, I believe, were in the employment of

Hm— !
. MorrEY.—I want to get at the bottom, if I
can, of this suggestion about Hegarty. What he says
himself is that in April, 1887, he was going home in
s car. from Millstreet Station with his son and
servant man when he was shot at and wounded.
Now, what is the information that you received apon
which you ventured to make the suggestion that He-
garty was injured by some one on his car? In the first
gllna, who gave you the information upon which yon

ased it:P—Beveral people. ' :

Name one. I mean to probe this matter to the
bottom in the box.—John Reardon. - - ,

What did he tell you P—He told me that the

eral impression was that the shot was fired from

8 car.

By one of the persons on the car P—Yes ; how
otherwise could the shot have been fired from the car ?

The two persons on the car were a servant man and
s son of Mr. Hegarty. Did you ask Reardon which
of the two he suggested fired the shot P—I did not.

Who was Reardon 7—He was a member of the
National League in Millstreet, and was the corre-
spondent of some of the newmﬁn.

Did he hold any office in the Land League ?—I
think he did, but that was before my time.

What offiee did he hold ?—That of secretary, but I
do not think that he was secretary during m& time.

Did any one else tell you this story ?—Yes, there
was & railway porter in the em[illiuymunb of the Great
Bouth-Western ; I do not know his name ; I think he
is now a porter at the Kingsbridge Station.

Did you ask Reardon from whom he heard this story ?
—I think he heard it from the railway porter.

. Then the railway porter, whose name you cannot
gm, is supposed to have told Reardon, and Reardon

ld you ?—Xes, but I saw the railway porter myself.
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What did he tell you ?--He told me that he balieved
that the shot was fired on the car.

Did you ask him how he came to kmow anything
:]mut it 7~He gaid that he was on duty on the sta-
ion —

Tell me what he said he saw.—I wish to tell you
~asgimply as I can, if you will allow me. I met

this railway porter, under very utranﬁa circumstances,
not so long ago. I was going through Ireland visiting
the Plan of Campaign stations, and when I reae
Dublin I wae in danger of being arrested. It was my
intention to avoid arrest, and to get to Parliament to
vote before' I was arrested, and I accomplished that
object. When I came to Dublin on my way to London
' & very strange thing happened. I went to the railway
office to get some t':ghmga v ' .

The PRESIDENT.—I am afraid that all these details
throw no light “ﬁon the matter. :
_ Dr. Tanner.—My Lord, I am explaining why I had
& very short interview and a very hurried one ‘with the

railway porter. - I wish your Lordsh.l;ﬁn to understand
that I had to look out for fear I should be a .
hended ‘2t any moment, and therefore I had only &
shoré opportunity for learning what the account:of the
railway porter'was. = 2% et S : _

Mr. MUR2HY.—What did he tell you P ' _

Dr. Tanner,—He told me that he believed that the
‘shot was fired off the car, = AR R R
. The, PRESIDENT.,—Do: you mean that he tdld you
that he was' in such a place that he could see what
"“ﬁr“"%ﬂ PE B Sl S APy

r. Tanner.—I think 5o, my Lord. e S
_ Cross-examination contint'lnlgd.-—])id he tell you that
be saw it done ¥—He said that he'saw.a flash. -
3 'Dttﬁ; jtonﬂujj;. that he told you that P—Yes, something
o effect, '

How 1 ago did he tell you that P—About a fort-

}.ﬂaﬂ“ 'h'efu:fh I went to 'pn'.Tlun—lt the end of April

- When did Reardon tell 'you this 7—~When did the
outrage occur ?
 In April, 1887.—What was the next meeting I
T snmo el ol 1t was 8
canno ou.—Well, it was, a
on the next occasion {lhan 1 went to Millstreet

rate,
after
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. Was it before or after rm went to Ballyvourney ?—
I went there on the 3d of January, 1886.

Yes, but after the occurrence. Was it before or
after your next visit to Ballyvourney ?P—I cannot
possibly tell you.

Do you stand in that box, Dr. Tanner, and seriously
say that you believe that the occurrence took place
owing either to design or to accident, on the part ni
either the son or the servant of Hegarty P—I should
not wonder.

To which of themdo you attribute the occurrence ?—I
could not say which. Many similar plots occur in Ire-

- They are got’ up for the purpose of injuring the
Land Lngna s—-ﬂmﬂminly. R . s
' There is a speech of yours which was delivered im-
mediately after the firing at Hegarty, and which is
reported in the Cork Herald on the 30th of May, 1887,
in which you say :— : e o Ve,
‘* Hence those men who declare that they would
‘wish to be our friends were doing everything the
bly could to make mischief here in Iralnj.
ir o 'j,:nt in doing so was-to deliver over the Irish
ranpla the. tender mercies of the little Eang and
heir unfortunate dupes and minions who work evil in
%his country. (Hear, hear.) By the lstter he meant
the class of bum-bailiffs, and even. the Royal Irish
Constabulary. (Groans.) No, they should not groan
4hem, for thei would be all on the popular sice before
long. Th?! ould treat every man according to his
degerts. How did they know when they boohed the
police that many of the men among them may not .
ibly, if they rhl-d the power, go off to-morrow or
e next dl.{ and join the ranks. He had not gone
there on that occasion to abase any one—not even Jerry
Hegarty (boohs and hisses), because he was too low
to abuse. There were some insects that crawl on the
face of the earth that were too small to crush. There
were certain insects that if one did happen to crush
them they would smell. He did not want to abuse
Hegarty or to crush him (laughter), but they could
rost mssured that every man who worked against his
Gcounbry, every man who was a renegade to Ireland
&nd to her rights, would meet with his deserts.
herefore he was there to speak to the true men, and

54



THE SPECTAL COMMISSION.

to ask them, as they had been irue in the past, to be
more true and firm and solid as this year of coercion
went on, (Cheers.)"’
Now, at the time you used those words, did you
not kmow that this unfortunate man was lying wounded
from the shot that had been fired at him ?—I think
not. I could not tell you. I would not swear to it.
There are several other meetings at which I made
rﬁeechaa which have not been put in, and to which
the learned counsel who cross-examined me has paid
no attention. I call your Lordships’ attention to the
fact that I made other speeches in which I advised
boycotting of a similar kind to that which had been
Rractinad upon me, and which did not lead to intimi-
ation or outrage. I do not believe in intimidation
or outrage, and I have always denounced outrages.
(Dr. Tanner here read several speeches which, he
made in support of his assertion that he condemned
outrage.) _
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